
** Please note that upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals 

through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511. 

 

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 

 

BELOIT BOARD OF APPEALS 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Tuesday, July 11, 2017 

7:00 PM 

The Forum 

Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street 

 

1. Roll Call 

 

2. Election of Officers 

a. Nomination and election of Chair 

b. Nomination and election of Vice-Chair 

c. Nomination and election of 2
nd

 Vice-Chair 

 

3. Minutes of the May 9, 2017 Meeting 

 

4. Gerald Nichols – 964 Cleveland Street 

 BOA-2017-02 Area Variance to Section 6.3.4(d) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance 

to allow the total area of a detached accessory structure (garage) to exceed 720 square feet, 

for the property located at 964 Cleveland Street. 

 

5. Adjournment 

 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, notify the Planning Office at (608) 364-6700 no later 

than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

 

Notice Mailed: June 26, 2017 

Approved: Drew Pennington, AICP, Director of Planning & Building Services 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF BELOIT BOARD OF APPEALS 

Meeting of May 9, 2017 

 

A Meeting of the City of Beloit Board of Appeals was held on Tuesday, May 9, 2017, in The 

Forum of Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. Chairperson John Schroer called the meeting to 

order at 7:00 PM. 

 

1. Roll Call 
Director of Planning & Building Services Drew Pennington called the roll.  Present were: 

John Schroer, Merlin Bussan, Carolyn Hansen, Willis Zick, and Dustin Gronau.  John 

Petersen was absent. 

  

2. Approval of the Minutes of the October 14, 2014 and July 12, 2016 Meetings 

Mr. Bussan made a motion to approve the October 14, 2014 and July 12, 2016 Minutes as 

submitted.  Ms. Hansen seconded the motion.  The motion passed (5-0), voice vote. 

 

3. Janet A. Becker – 1263 Eaton Avenue 

BOA-2017-01 Use Variance to Section 4-202 of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance to 

allow a two-family dwelling (duplex) in an R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, for 

the property located at 1263 Eaton Avenue. 

 

Mr. Pennington reviewed the staff report and recommendation. 

 

Mr. Bussan asked Mr. Pennington to explain the notification process prior to downzoning 

actions.  Mr. Pennington stated that current state statutes require individual property 

owners to be notified prior to a downzoning action affecting their property, but that the 

notification process was likely different in in the 1990’s.  Mr. Zick asked Mr. Pennington 

if the applicant received an individual notice prior to her property being downzoned, and 

Mr. Pennington stated that he did not believe that individual notices were provided at that 

time. 

 

Mr. Schroer opened the public hearing.  Ms. Becker identified herself as the applicant.  

Ms. Becker stated that her rental unit was last occupied in 2007, and had never been a 

problem in the neighborhood.  Ms. Becker stated that her rental unit was inspected 

several times without incident until she had the water meter replaced in 2016 and she 

informed the water utility that the unit had been vacant for a long period of time.  Mr. 

Zick stated to the applicant that the Board was not making a policy decision, and that the 

City Council had implemented a downzoning policy in 1999. 

 

Ms. Becker stated that using the second unit as storage was not reasonable due to the 

layout, and that buyers of her property would not be interested in that arrangement.  Ms. 

Becker stated that she had consulted a realtor.  Mr. Schroer asked Ms. Becker if she had 

obtained an estimate from a contractor to convert the structure into a single-family 

dwelling, and she stated that she had not.  Mr. Schroer closed the public hearing. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Mr. Zick stated that the applicant may not have been treated fairly back in 1999 if she 

was not notified of the downzoning, but that the process had been improved now.  Mr. 

Bussan stated that the hardship was self-created because the applicant voluntarily left the 

rental unit vacant for a decade.  The Board members discussed whether or not failure to 

provide individual notice of the downzoning in 1999 constituted a hardship upon the 

applicant, and agreed that the lack of notice did not justify a variance in 2017.  Several 

Board members expressed sympathy for the applicant’s situation. 

 

Mr. Zick made a motion to deny the requested variance.  Mr. Bussan seconded the 

motion.  The motion passed (5-0), voice vote. 

 

4. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 7:45 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Drew Pennington, AICP 

 



July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols   

 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
 
Meeting Date: July 11, 2017 
 

Agenda Item: 4 File Number: BOA-2017-02 

Applicant: Gerald Nichols Owner: Gerald Nichols 
  

Location: 964 Cleveland Street 

Existing Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential District 

Existing Land Use: Single-Family 
Dwelling 

Parcel Size: 0.1526 Acre 

 
 
Request: 
Gerald Nichols has filed an application requesting an Area Variance to Section 6.3.4(d) of the City of Beloit Zoning 
Ordinance to allow the total area of a detached accessory structure (garage) to exceed 720 square feet, for the property 
located at 964 Cleveland Street. 
 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
The applicant has proposed the construction of a new driveway on Merrill Street and the construction of a 24’ x 36’ 
detached garage to the west of the existing house.  The proposed 864 square-foot garage is larger than the maximum 
allowed by the Ordinance, which is 720 square feet. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 Section 6.3.4(d) of the Zoning Ordinance includes general standards for accessory buildings, and establishes a 
maximum area of all detached accessory buildings of 720 square feet or 10% of the lot area, whichever is greater. 
For the subject property, the maximum is 720 square feet. This regulation is intended to ensure that accessory 
buildings remain subordinate to the house in terms of size and use, which protects the residential character of 
single-family neighborhoods. 

 According to the applicant, the 864 square-foot garage is needed in order to store his boat, motorcycles, and pick-
up truck. The existing house is 898 square feet with a 200 square-foot attached garage. 

 The proposed garage is 24 feet wide and 36 feet deep, and will include an 18-foot overhead garage door facing 
Merrill Street. The Engineering Division has approved the applicant’s request for a Driveway Permit for a new 
driveway on Merrill Street. 

 The proposed garage has setbacks of 6 feet from the interior side (south) lot line and 4 feet from the rear (west) 
lot line, which complies with the minimum (3-foot) setbacks in the Zoning Ordinance. 

 According to the applicant, the garage will include siding and roofing that matches the house. 
 The attached Public Notice was sent to 18 nearby property owners. As of this writing, Planning staff has not 

received any comments or concerns. 
 Wisconsin Supreme Court Standards for Area Variances 

The Wisconsin Supreme Court has established a standard for granting variances to zoning regulations.  For 
“area” variances, the property owner and/or applicant has the burden of proving that the standard for granting an 
area variance has been met.  In order to grant an area variance, the Board of Appeals must determine that all of 
the following criteria of section 2-903 are satisfied: 
(a) Compliance with the strict letter of the Zoning Ordinance regulating area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or 

density would create a hardship by either:   
(1) unreasonably preventing the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose; or 
(2) rendering conformity with such regulations unnecessarily burdensome. 

(b) The hardship is unique to the property. 
(c) The hardship is not self-created. 
(d) The variance will not undermine the purpose of the ordinance or the public interest. 
(e) The variance will not permit a use of land that substantially changes the character of the neighborhood. 

 The attached Findings of Fact evaluate this application against the above standards. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan:  

 The Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential – Urban uses and a zoning district classification 
of R-1B for the subject property. The subject property’s zoning district classification is consistent with this 
recommendation. 
 



July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols   

 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends denial of the requested Area Variance to Section 6.3.4(d) of the 
City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance to allow the total area of a detached accessory structure (garage) to exceed 720 square 
feet, for the property located at 964 Cleveland Street, based upon the established criteria of Section 2-903 of the Zoning 
Ordinance and the attached Findings of Fact. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Findings of Fact, Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Application, Sketch, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 



July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 
FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
 
Area Variance to Section 6.3.4(d) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance to allow the total area of a detached 
accessory structure (garage) to exceed 720 square feet, for the property located at 964 Cleveland Street. 
 
Under the standards for Area Variances in Section 2-903 of the Zoning Ordinance, Planning staff finds: 
 

(a) Compliance with the strict letter of the Zoning Ordinance regulating area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or 
density would not create a hardship by either: 

(1) Unreasonably preventing the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose; or  

(2) Rendering conformity with such regulations unnecessarily burdensome. 
 

The ordinance allows the applicant to construct a 720 square-foot garage, which is 24 feet by 30 feet. 
 

(b) The hardship is not unique to the property. 
 
The subject property is an average-size single-family property. It is not unusually small, and even if it were, the Zoning 
Ordinance allows all single-family properties to have detached accessory buildings totaling 720 square feet or 10 
percent of the lot area, whichever is greater. 
 
(c) The hardship is self-created. 
 
The applicant is voluntarily seeking to construct a garage. The hardship claimed in the application is related to the 
applicant’s personal belongings and circumstances. 

 
(d) The variance will undermine the purpose of the ordinance or the public interest. 
 
The variance may undermine the purpose of the ordinance by allowing a garage that is the same approximate size as 
the house to which it is accessory. 

 
(e) The variance will not permit a use of land that substantially changes the character of the neighborhood.  

 
The proposed garage is located in the rear corner of the lot, and if approved, is not expected to change the character 
of the neighborhood. 
 



July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols 

 



July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 



July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols 

 



July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols 



 

July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols 

 



 

July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols 

 



 

July 11 Staff Report, BOA-2017-02, 964 Cleveland Street, Nichols 

 


